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Chartered Accountants Teynampet, Chennai 600018, INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Albonair {India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Albonair {India) Private Limited (“the Company”},
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (Inctuding Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (“ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl} together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’s report but dees not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance / Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in eguity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregutarities;
‘selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate interpal financial controls,-that. were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, ﬁélﬁyhht?;;‘téft\n‘e
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In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors / Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to tiquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terims of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference Lo financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
.

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
T, position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for whlch
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 3.12 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 3.12 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Parties), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this
audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11{e) as provided under (1) and (2} above, contain any material mis-statement.

\'2 The Company has neither dectared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
company only w.e.f. Aprit 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act
and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Company as it is a private Company,

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No., 105047W
".!:},{_.__ ";;’*‘N =
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IR (4
S v

T.V.Ganesh

Partner

Membership No. 203370
UDIN: 23203370BGRKYF5318

Place: Chennai
Date: May 03,2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ALBONAIR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ {dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controt that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with retevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appticable, related safeguards.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

T.V.Ganesh

Partner

Membership No. 203370
UDIN: 23203370BGRKYF5318

Place: Chennai
Date: May 03, 2023

Head Otfice. 602, Flooi &, Raheja Titanwun:, Western Express Highway, Geetlanjali Ratiway Coleny, Ram Nagar, Goregaon {E). Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: 191 22 6238 0519
Ahmedabag¢ ¢ Bensaturu | Chennai | Goa 1 Guragramy | Hvderabad | Kochi | Holksta | Mumbai | Pune wawr.mska. in



MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ALBONAIR
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’
Report]

i.
(a)
A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, lant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars of intangible assets.

{b) The Cornpany has a program of verification of all item of Property Plant and Eauipment over the period of two
years and accordingly some of the item of Property Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year
which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets, Based on
the information and explanation provided to us, there were no material discrepancies noticed on such
verification. :

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties, and accordingly,
the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended
and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

ii.

(a) The inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) has been physically verified by the management during the
year. in respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have stbstantially been confirmed by them. In our
opinion, the frequency, coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory.

(b} During the year the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate
from Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed
with such Banks are in agreement with the books of account.

iii.  According to the information exptanation provided to us, the Company has not made any investments in, provided
any guarantee or security, or granted any loans or advances in the nature of {oans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph
3(iii) of the Order are not applicabte to the Company.’

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither, directly or indirectly,
granted any loan, or provided guarantee or security to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the
director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act nor made investments through
more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has hot accepted any deposits from the
mtglieﬁwjt\hin the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

PSY0G;

flead Ofitce, 602, Floor 6. Raheja Titanwn. Westetn Express Highwey. Geelanjail Railway Colony, Ram Nagal Geregaon (£), sumbai 400063 1HDiA, Tel: +91 22 6238 8519
Almedabad | Benealuru § Chennai | Goa | Gurueram | Hyderabad t keocni | Kolkata ) Humbai | Pune wyn, mska.in



MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

vi.  The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central
Government of Indfa has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii.

{a} According to the information and exptanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in
our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities in all cases during
the year.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess, and other statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payabte,

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dues relating to Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, cess or other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

vili.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted in
the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of
the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of
account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix.
(a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority,

(¢} Inour opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised by way of term
loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3({ix){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence reporting under the Clause (ix)(e}
of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f} The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence, reporting under the Clause 3(ix){f)
of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a} In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x){a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{b) According to the informatian and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly,
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the

f;%esr:bage not applicable to the Company.
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xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given fo us, we report
that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during the course
of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023, accordingly the provisions stated in
paragraph (xi}(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year,

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company, Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii} (a) to {c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable
accounting standards. The Company does not fall under definition of a listed company or other class of companies
which is required to constitute audit committee under section 177(4) (iv) of the Act and said provision is not
applicable to the company.

Xiv,
{a) n our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence, provisions
of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company.

Xvi.
{a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi){a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 43 IA of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{c) The Company is not a Core investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{¢) The Group does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3
(xvi){d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii. Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current
financiat year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Campany.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph
3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xiX, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Comnpany is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state thal this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the provisions of Section
135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made the required contributions during the
year and there are no unspent amounts which are required to be transferred either to a Fund or to a Special
Account as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with schedule VII. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3{xx}(a) and Clause 3{xx){b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate
or Joint Venture. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3({xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No, 105047W

KB
T.V.Ganesh
Partner

Membership No. 203370
UDIN: 23203370BGRKYF5318

Place: Chennai
Date: May 03, 2023
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ANNEXURE € TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ALBONAIR (IND1A) PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Atbonair (India) Private Limited on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 20231

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Compantes Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Albonair {India) Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internat financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controt stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controts Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financiat statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staterents, whether due to fraud or ervor,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion o tigsGampany's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
externat purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A Company's internal financial
control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No, 105047W

T.V.Ganesh

Partner

Membership No. 203370
UDIN; 23203370BGRKYFH318

Place: Chennai
Date: May 03, 2023
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Albonair (Indla) Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31,2023

As at

Particulars Note March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
a5 i Rs, Crores
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propery, plant and equipment 11 17.14
Capital work-in-progress 1.1 G156
Right-of-use assel 1.1A 1.55
Other [mangidle assels 1.2 1.20
ncome lax assets (net) 1.3 0.53
Qther non-curent assets 1.4 0.680
24,37
Current assels
inventories 1.6 89,28
Financiaf Assels
{iy Trade receivables 1.6 171,83
(iiy Cash and cash equivalents 1.7 1.61
(iii) Other financial assets 1.8 0.01
QOther cusrent assels 1.9 0.96
263.79
TOTAL ASSETS 285.16
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capital +.10 45,00
Giher equity 1.1 28.12
73.12
Liabilitles
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabifities
Lease Liabilty 1.12 1.23
Provisions 1.13 19.18
Deferred tax labiltles (net) 114 0.31
20.70
Current labilities
Financial liahilities
(i} Borravings 16.1¢
(il) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0,74
b} Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and smal enterprises 158.97
{iii) Lease Eiability 112 0.35
{iv) Other financial fabilities 1.47 3.62
Qther current liabilites 1.18 1.96
Provisions 1.18 9,51
191.34
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 285,18

Statement on Signlficant Accounting Policles and Notes form an Integral part

For and on behalf of tiie Roard

N, Saravanan
Chalrman & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 08772440

N. Pandi

Comparny Secretary
Date: May 03, 2023
Chennai

This is the Balance Shee! referred to in our report of eéven date.

For MSKA & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 105047W
Chartered Accountants

T.V.Ganesh
Pariner
Membership Number - 203370

Date: May 83, 2023
Chennai

of this Financia

Vasan Ranganathan

Chief Financial Officer

{ Statements.




Albonair {India} Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Not “i Year ended Year ended
® | March31;2023 .| March 31, 2022
. Rs.Crores Rs. Crores
ihcome g
Revenue from operations 2.1 SE0001,047.96 52225
Other income 22 : o 0.05
Total lngome 522.30
Expenses
Cost of materials and services consumed 2.3 453.57
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-lrade and work-in-progress 2.4 (23.03)
Employee benefits expense 2.5 6,08
Finance costs 26 3.45
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.7 4.30
Other expenses 2.8 37.53
Total Expenses 481.90
Profit before tax 40,40
Tax expense:
Current {ax 9.59
Deferred tax - (Credit) / Charge {0.12)
9.47
Profit for the year 30.93
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans {0.05)
{ii} Income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 0.01
Total Other Comprehensive Income I {Loss) {0.04)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 30.89
Earnings per share (Face valua Rs.10 each)
-Basic {in Rs.) 3.3 6.87
-Diluted {in Rs.) 3.3 6.87

Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes form an integral part of this Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

N. Saravanan Vasan Ranganathan
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08772440

N. Pandi

Company Secretary
Date: May 03, 2023
Chennai

This s the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date,
For MSKA & Associates

Firm Registration Number - 105047W

Chartered Accountants

T.V.Ganesh

Partner

Membership Number - 203370
Date: May 03, 2023

Chennai




Albonair {India) Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the period ended March 31,2023

Yearondod

© March 31,2023 -

March 31, 2022

Year ended

Particulars
“ URa Crores Rs. Crores
Cash flow from operating activities : i
Profit for the year 30.83
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4.30
Exchange Variation (net) 0.01
Loss on sale of Properiy Plant and Equipment - Net 0.15
Income tax expense 9.47
Finance costs 3.45
Intarest income (0.05)
Operating profit before working capital changes 48.26
Adjustments for changes in:
Trade receivables {77.64)
Inventeries (65.80)
Current financial assels {0.07)
Other non-current and current assels {C.19)
Trade payables 92.08
Current financial labilities (0.41)
Cursent fiabilities (2.00}
Other non-current and current provisions 20.72
Cash generated from Oparations 22.3
Income tax paid (net of refund} : {9.98)
Net cash generated from operating activities [AY 12.33
Cash flow from investing activities ’
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assetls {5.07)
Proceeds on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assels 0.062
Bank Balance not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents (with maturily more than R
three months) - Net
Interest received : 0.05
Net cash used in investing activities [B] - {5.00)
Cash flow from financing activities
(Repayments of) / proceeds from currant borrowings - Net {2.04)
Payments of Lease liability {0.47)
interest paid {3.30)
Net cash used in financing activities [C] (6.81)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalants {A+B+C] : 1.62
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year ’ 0.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [Refer Note 1.7 to the financial 164

statements]

Statement on Significant Accounting Policles and Notes form an integral part of this Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Beard

N. Saravanan Vasan Ranganathan
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 0877244¢C

N. Pandi

Company Secretary
Date: May 03, 2023
Chennai

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred 1o in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Assoclates

Firm Regisiration Number - 105047W

Chartered Accountants

T.V.Ganesh

Partner

Membership Number - 203370
Date: May 03, 2023




Albonair (India} Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31,2023

A. Equity Share Capital

Rs, Crores
“UAsatMarch 31,2023 7| AsatMarch 34, 2022
Egit(l;ty shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully Noofshares Amount | No. of shares Amount
Opening L7 4,50,00,000 |4 4,50,00,000 45
Add: Equity Shares issued during the year e [ - -
Closing 14,50,00,000 |48 4,50,00,000 45
B. Other Equity
Rs,. Crores
Particulars Reta.med
earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2021 {2.77)
Profit for the year 30.93
Other comprehensive incame (net of tax) ‘ {0.04)
Totai Comprehensive Income for the year 30.89
Transactions with owners:
On issue of shares -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 28,12
Profit for the year 72.09
Cther comprehensive income (net of tax} 0.114
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 72.20
Transactions with owners:
On issue of shares -
Balance as at March 31,2023 100.32

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board

N. Saravanan Vasan Ranganathan
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08772440

N. Pandi

Company Secretary

Date: May 03, 2023

Chennai

This is the Statement of changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For MSKA & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 105047W
Chartered Accountants

T.V.Ganesh

Partner

Membership Number - 203370
Date: May 03, 2023

Chennai




Albonair {India} Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

1. General Information

Albonalr India Private Limited ("The Company") is an unlisted private.company domiciled in India
and governed by the Companies Act, 2013 {("Act"). The Company's registered office is situated at
1, Sardar Patel Road, Guindy, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India. The Company is principally engaged in
the devetopment and production of exhaust after-treatment systems for on-road and off-road
vehicles. The Company is a subsidiary of Ashok Leyland Limited.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Compliance with indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS})

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as
per the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and nofified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act)) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the
accounting policies balow. .

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access al the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are chservable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

+ L evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule i to the Act. Based on the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalenis, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current ~ non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest crores as per the requirement of Schedule
IIf of the Companies Act 2013, except when otherwise indicated




Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

The significant accounting policies are detailed helow:
3.1 Revenue Recognition
Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

ind AS 115 establishes a five-stap model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entilies o exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers, The
standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the
costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

Revenue from Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when control of the asset is lransferred to the
customer, generally when the preduct is despatched to the customer or appropriated in accordance
with the terms of Sale and when the Coilectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.
With respect to revenue from sale of Exhaust After treatment system the Company operates
predominantly on credit basis {30 {o 45 days) to customers.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
warranties). In determining the transaction price for the sale of product, the Company considers the
effects of variable consideration, the existence of consideration payable to the customer, etc,

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue from services is recagnised over the period of time as and when services are rendered in
accerdance with the specific terms of contract with customers. Revenue in excess of invoicing are
classified as Contract assefs (referred to as Unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues
are classified as Contract liabilities (referred to as Unearned revenue)

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.) Interest income is inciuded in
other income in the statement of profit or loss.

3.2 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency fransactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using
the exchange rale at the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting pericd, monetary items
denominated in foreign currency are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange
differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date
are recognized as profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.

3.3 Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries, wages,

,rf’f')’tﬁ:ga‘gf'ceﬂ incentives, medical benefits and other short-term benefits in the period the related
)

;
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Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

service is rendered, at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service.

Long-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefils are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting period.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefits plans are determined under the relevant
schemes and /or statute and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of incurrence
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Payments to defined contribution ptans i.e., Company's contribution to provident fund, and other
funds are delermined under the relevant schemes and/ or statute and charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period of incurrence when the services are rendered by the employees.

For defined benefit plans i.e. Company's liability towards gratuity (unfunded) and compensated
absences (unfunded), the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Defined benefit costs are comprised of:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses
on curtailments and settiementsy,
net interest expense or income, and

o re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line
item 'Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service
costs.

Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability/ asset periaining to gratuity comprise of actuarial
gains/ losses (i.e. changes in the present value resulting from experience adjustments and effects
of changes in actuarial assumptions) and is reflected immediately in the batance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.4 Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or foss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively.

Current tax

Current tax is determined on taxable profils for the year chargeable to tax in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 including other applicable tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted.

Deferred tax

y ;‘:Qefggred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

E?ii.&};i\illﬁé@ in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
“ taxable! {of‘tl‘ Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
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Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax credits (MAT eniitltement), deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that if is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those unused tax credits, deductible temporary differences and unused
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assst! to he recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax raies (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflecls the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settie the carrying amount of its assets and liabiiities.

If there is uncertainty over tax treatment of an item, company will predict the resolution of the
uncertainty. If it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the tax treatment, there will be no
impact on the amounts of taxable profitsfosses, tax bases, unused {ax lossesferedits and tax rates.
If it is not so probable that tax authority will accept the tax treatment, company will show the effect
of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either the most likely outcome or the
expected outcome of the uncertainty.

3.5 Property, Plant and Equipmant.
Cost:

Property, Plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost (net of duty/ tax credit availed) less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenses attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and also borrowing
cost in respect of qualifying assets.

Depreciation/ amortisation:

"Depreciation on Property, Piant and Equipment is recognised from the date the assels are ready for
their intended use so as to write off the cost of the assets less their residual values over their useful
lives using the straight-line method.

Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment which are added/disposed during the year, is
provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/ deletion. When significant parts
of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usefui lives they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying vaiue of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of April 1, 2015 (the transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP
and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Estimated useful lives of the assets, based on technical assessment, which are different in certain
cases from those prescribed in Schedule [l to the Act, are as follows:

Classes of Property, Plant and Equipment Useful life (years)
Plant and machinery 1 to 20 years
Furniture and fittings 2to 8 years
Qffice equipment 3 to 8 years

3to 8 years




Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

De-recognition:

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is defermined as the differance
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.6 Intangihle Assets

Intangible assets are capitalised when it is probable that the future economic henefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets acquired are carried at cost less any accumulated amorlisation and accumulated
impairment fosses.

intangible assets wilh finite lives are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised
as of April 1,2015 (the transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying
values as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

be-recognition of intangible assets:

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expscted
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is
recoghised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assels, based on technical assessment, are as follows:

Classes of Intangible Asset Useful life (years)

Other Software 2 1o 8years

3.7 Impairment losses

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether there is any indication that
its assets (property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) have suffered an impairment loss
with reference to their carrying amounts. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use) of such assails is
estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual assel, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount carried had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is




Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

3.8 Leases

The indian Accounting Standard on leases {Ind AS 118) reguires entity lo determine whether a
contract is or contains a lease at the inception of the confract.

Ind AS 116 requires lessee fo recognise az liabilily to make lease payments and an asset
representing the right-of-use asset during the lease term for all leases except for short term leases
and leases of low-value assels, if they choose to apply such exemptions.

Payments associated with short-term leases and low-value assets are recognized as expenses in
profit or loss. Short-terin leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise of office equipment's and small items of plant and equipment and office

furniture.

At the commencement date, Company recognise a right-of-use asset measured at cost and a lease
liability measured at the present value of the lease paymenis that are not paid at that date. The
lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, ¥ that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily dstermined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The cost of the right-of-use asset comprised of, the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liahility, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received.

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise (a) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable; (b} variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement
date; (c) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guaraniees; (d) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably cerfain to exercise that option and
(e} payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the |lessee exercising
an opflion to terminate the lease.

Depreciation on Right-of-use asset is recognisad in statement of profit and L.oss on a straight line
basis over the period of lease and the Company separately recognises interest on lease liability as
a component of finance cost in statement of profit and Loss.

3.9 Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks which are
short term and highly liquid investments (if any)} that are readily convertible info known amounts of
cash and which are subject {o insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.10 Inventories
inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials and components, stores, spares, and consumable tcols comprises cost of
purchases and includes taxes and duties and is net of eligible credits under GST schemes. Cost of
work-in-progress, work-made components and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads, which is allocated on a
systematic basis. Cost of inventories also includes all other related costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition,

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventorles are determined as follows:

-~Raw_ materials and components, stores, spares, consumable tools: on moving weighted
S .

-averdge basis; and

A
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Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

o \Work-in-progress, works-made components and finished goods: on moving weighted average
basis plus appropriate share of overheads.

Cost of surplus/ obsolete/ slow moving inventories are adequately provided for.
3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated fo seftle the present obligation it's carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material.)

When some or ali of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Warranties:

Provision for expected cost of warranty obligations governing sale of goods are recoghised on the
date of sale of the relevant products at the Management's best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation which takes into account the empirical data on the nature, frequency and
average cost of warranty claims regarding possible future incidences. Product warranty is eslimated
and made for the unexpired period with regard to obligations after considering contractual recourse
on the supplier for product defects.

3.12 Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs (general and' specific borrowings) that are aftributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assels that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other horrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financiat liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
confractual provisions of the instruments.

Einancial assets and financlal liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.14 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade

date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
_,,‘_,dgjiy\e;rg.gf\assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the markelplace.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

3.14.1 Classification of financial assets

The financial assets are Initfally measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets are added to the fair value of the financial assets
on initial recognition.

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost if the asset Is held within a business mode] whose objective I to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments on principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI if
the assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and the contraciual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principai and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,

Financial assets which are not classified in any of the above categories are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other Income” fine item,

3.14.2 Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired or subject to significant increase in credit risk, when
one or mare events that may have a detrimental effect on estimated future cash flows of the asset
have occurred. The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment
loss on financial assets (i.e. the shortfall between the contractual cash flows that are due and all the
cash flows (discounted) that the Company expects to receive).

The Company applies expected credit loss mode! for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

a. the 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that resuit from those defauit
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date); or

b. full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

3.14.3 De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights fo the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another parly. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised horrowing for the proceeds received,

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recagnised in the Statement of
profit and loss.
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3.15 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
3.15.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financiat liability and an equity instrument.

3.15.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of an entity after
deducting all of its fiabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. i

3.15.3 Financial liabilifies

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method or at FVTPL. '

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or recelved
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.15.4 De-recognition of financial Habilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments
with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Stmilarly, a substantial modification of the
terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of
a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilily
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

4, Critical Accounting Judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
4.1 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management io make
estimates, judgements and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
recognised in the financial statements that are not readily apparent from other sources. These
estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo
accounting estimates (accounted on a prospeclive basis) are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pericd, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant
affect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and or key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

4.2 Critical accounting estimates
4.2.1 Provision for product warranty

The Company's product warranly obligations and estimations thereof are determined using
historical information on the type of product, nature, frequency and average cost of warranly claims
and the estimates regarding possible future incidences of product failures. Changes in estimated
frequency and amount of future warranly claims, which are inherently uncertain, can materially
affect warranty expense.

4.2.2 Fair value measurements and valuation processes

if any of the Company’s assets and labiiities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes, the Management defermines the appropriate valuation technigues and inputs for the fair
value measurements,

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuations, The Management works closely with the qualified
externatl valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

information about the vaiuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets and liabilities wilt be disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements.

4.3.3 Taxation

Tax expense is calculated using applicable tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted. In arriving at taxable profit and all tax bases of asseis and liabilities, the Company
determines the taxability based on tax enactments, relevant judicial pronouncements and {ax expert
opinions, and makes appropriate provisions which includes an estimation of the likely outcome of
any open tax assessments / litigations. Any difference is recognised on closure of assessment or in
the period in which the they are agreed.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, unabsorbed
depreciation and unused tax credits could be utilised.

4.3.4 Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the reaiisable value is estimated to be lower
than the inventory carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into account various
factars, including prevailing sales prices of inventory item, changes in the related laws / emission
norms and losses associated with cobsolete / slow-moving / redundant inventory items. The
Company has, based on these assessments, made adequate provision in the books.

Amendments to IND AS effective from April 1, 2023

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time {o time. On
March 31, 2623, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules,
2023, as below:

ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company
has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial
statements.
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Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has
introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023,
The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after Aprif 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
financial statement,
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Atbonatr {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed o and forming part of the financial statements
Asat. As at
 March 31, 202300 March 34, 2022
RsCrores o Rs. Crores
1.3 NON - CURRENT - INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET) PR
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax Rs 24.86 crores {March 22:Rs 9.58 Crores)} 0.53
.53
14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
a) Capital advances
Gthers
Consldered good 0.78
a.7a
b) Balances with custams, port trust, central excise etc,
Considered doubtful 0,086
Less: Alowance for doubtful balances {0.06)
c) Prepaid expenses 0.02
: 0.02
0,45, .80
Note:
Movement in Aflowance for doubtful balances towards balances with customs, port trust, central excise, elc.is as follows:
Particufars March 31, 2022
Opening balance (0.06)
Addilions -
Utitisations / Reversals -
Closing balance (0.06)




Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

1.5 INVENTORIES
{a) Raw materials and components
{b) Work-in-progress
(c) Finished goods

{d) Stores, spares and consumable tools

Notes:

1. Goods in transit included above are as follows:
Raw materials and componenis

2. Cost of materials consumed {including purchase cost} during the year

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs, Crores

- March 31, 202
i Re.Crores

56.00

33.27

0.01

89.28

3.84

868.49. 430.54
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Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

-~ Mare

1.7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
i} Balance with banks:

a) In current accounts

b} In deposit accounts-Fixed deposit with bank having Maturity less than
3 months

i) Cash on hand *

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores

0.09

1.62

1.61

* amount is below rounding off norms adopted by the company

1.8 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
(Unsecured, cansidered good unless otherwise stated)

a) Employee advances

D) interest accrued on FD

0.01

0.01

1.8 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
a) Supplier advances
Considered good
b) Balances with Government authorities
Balances with customs

¢} Prepaid expenses

0.18

0.16

0.62

0.96




Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

1.10

¥

oo Agabiorin As at
'~ March 31,2023 " March 34, 2022
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL - Re.Crores . Rs. Crores
Authorised G
4,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 45.00
45.00
issued
4,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 45.00
45.00
Subscribed and fully paid up
4,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 45.00
45,00
Notes:

1. Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed 2 March 31,2023~ March 31, 2022
Balance as at the beginning of the year FRea - 4,50,00,000: 4,5(,00,000
Add: Issued during the year fEE -
Balance as at end of the period +4,50,00,000: 4,50,00,000

2. Shares issued in preceding 5 years

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted for consideration other than cash, bonus shares etc. in the five years
immediately preceding the Balance sheet date as on March 31, 2023 is Nil {March 2022 - Nil)

3. Shares held by the Holding Company

Ashok Leyland Limited, the holding company, holds 4,50,00,000 (March 2022: 4,50,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10
{March 2022: Rs.10) each aggregating te 100% {March 2022: 100%) of the total share capital.

4. Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

The Equity share holders are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared; a right to vole in propertion to holding
etc. and thefr rights, preferences and restrictions are governed by / in terms of their issue under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

5.Details of Shares held by

Promoters at the end of the year 31-Mar-23 81 Mareh 2022

S. No [Promoter hame No. Of Shares [% of total shares ;/;:rlmnge during the No. Of Shares 1% of total shares ;;;:riaangedurlng the
Ashok Leyland Limited 4,50,00,000, 100% 4 4,50,00.0060 100%

i March 31,2023 . March 31, 2022
OTHER EQUITY “Rs. Crores . Rs. Crores
Retained Earnings:
Balance as at the beginning of the year {(2.77)
Current year profit 30.93
Other Comprehensive Income arising from remeasurement of (0.04)

defined benefit obligation (net of tax)

Balance as at the end of the year T 10032 28.12




Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financia! statements

112 Lease Liability

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Particulars o oAsatt oo As at
March 31,2023°11 March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities “0.50; 0.35
Non-current lease liabilities A4 1.23
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is as follows :
Partlculars T Asatt As at
‘March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Balance at the beginning

1.90

Additions Sas
Finance cost accrued during the period 343 0.15
Payment of lease liabilities 051 0.47
Balance af the end 1.84: 1.68
Maturity analysls of fulure lease paymenis on an undiscounted basis
As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Rs in Crores
(a) Not later than 1 year 0.47
(b) Later than 1 year and not later than § years 1.40
(c) Later than 5 years -
Details of rental payment for contracts for which exemption is availed under IND AS 116 are as under.
As at
Particulars March 31, 2021
Rs in Crores
Lease period being less than 12 months fram the date of inception of lease 0.01




Albonair {india) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

i Agiab As at
March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
1.13 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

"Rs. Crores % Rs. Crores

a) Prevision for employee benefits

i. Compensated absences 0.39

ii. Gratuity 0.47
b) Others

i. Product warranties -38.28 18.30

3886, 19.76

Note:
Maovement in Provision for praduct warranties is as follows :
Particulars i March 31,2023:::0 March 31, 2022
Opening BT b T I 4.60
Add: Additions 20,00 13.70
Less: Utilisations 1{0.02) -
Less: Reversals S -
Closing R TR T I T 18.30

This provision is recognised once the preducts are sold. The estimated provision takes into account historical information, frequency and
average cost of warranty claims and the estimate regarding possible future incidence of claims. The provision for warranty claims represents
the present value of management’s best estimate of the future economic benefits. The outstanding provision for product warranties as at the
reporting date is for the balance unexpired period of the respeciive warranties on the various prodicts which range from 1 10 36 months.

As at
1.14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores
a) Deferred tax liahilities 0.94
b} Ceferred tax (assets) {0.63)
0.31

Note:
Refer Note 3.1 for details of deferred tax liabilities and assets.




Albonair (India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

As at
March 31, 2022

1.15 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS Rs. Crores

Short term loans from banks

Secured Borrowings - Working Capital Demand Loans 18.19

16.19

Note:

1. The weighted average rate of interest of these loans is Nif (March 2022 7.21% per annum) . The Borrowings are secured against
inventory and Trade Receivables of the company of Rs. 74.73 Crores (March 2022 Rs. 89.28 crores) and Rs. 195.13 Crores (March 2022
Rs.171.93 crores) respectively.

2. The company has registered the charges on security offered for the purpose of availing loan within the stipulated period.

3. The company has ulllised the loans horrowed during the year for the purpose for which it is obtained as mentioned in the barrowing]
agreements,

4. The company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any banks or financial institutions.

5. The pericdical returns submitted to the banks matches with books of accounts of the company.

Net debt reconciliation:

o Asatn As at
March 31, 202 March 31, 2022
. Cror Rs, Crores

Cash and cash equivalents 1.61
Current borrowings (16.19)
Net debt (14.58)

“iiwequivalents i 1] ¢ i Current borrowings - i v
Net debt as at March 31, 2021 0.09 (18.23) {18.14)
Cash flows (nef) 1.52 2.04 3.56
Interest / Processing fee expense - {(3.30) (3.30)
Interest / Processing fee paid - 3.30 3.30
Net deht as at March 31, 2022 1.61 {16.19) {14.58)
Cash flows (net) 80.99 16,19 97.18
Intarest / Processing fee expense - (0.03) (0.03)
interest / Processing fee paid - 0.03 0.03
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 §2.60 - 82.60




Albonair {India} Private Limited

Notes anitexed to and forming part of the financial statements

1.16 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables - including acceptances

a) Total cutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises

b) Tetal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Trade Payables ageing schedule - 31 March 2023

S Asatiho As at
" Makchi 34 2023__'-'-' March 31, 2022
S Rs, 'C_rbré i Rs. Crores
0.74
168.97
758.83 189,77

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilted| Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
(i} MSME - 1.12 0.04 - - - 1.15
(i) Others 6.64 149,10 1.94 - 157.68
(i) Disputed dues ~ MSME - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbitled| Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
Related Parties - 1.4 - - - - 1.1
Others 6.64 149.10 1.97 - - - 157.72
Trade Payables agelng schedule - 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due data of payment
Particulars Unbilled! MNotDue Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
(i) MSME - 0.74 - - - - 0.74
(i) Others 4.96 152.16 1.85 - 158.97
(iiiy Disputed dues — MSME - Q - - - - -
{iv} Disputed dues - Others - 0 - - - - -
Outstanding for following periods fram due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled| Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
Related Parties - 0.52 0.02 - - - 0.54
Others 4.96 152.38 1.83 - - - 150.17
Note:

1. These are carried at amoriised cost.
2. Includes accrued expenses / Hiabilities amouniing to Rs. 6.64 crores {March 2022: Rs. 4.96 crores).




Albanair (India) Private Limited

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

1.17 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

a) Employee benefits
b} Capital creditors

¢) Cthers - Accrued expenses

1.18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

a) Statutory fiabilities

1.19 CURRENT PROVISIONS

a) Pravision for employee banefits
i. Compensated absences
ii. Gratuity

b) Gthers
i, Product warranties

Note:
povement in Provision for product warranties is as follows :

- Particulars
Gpening
Add: Additions
Less: Utitisations
| ess: Reversals
Closing

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores
0.01
0.12
3.48
3.62
As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores
1.96
1.96
As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores
0.04
4.04
9.43
9.51

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

437 2.57
| 6.86

9.43

This provision is recegnised once the products are sold. The estimated provision takes into account historical information, frequency and average ¢ost

of warranty claims and the estimale regarding possible fulure incidence of claims. The provision for warranty claims re

presents the present value off

management’s best estimate of the future economic benefits. The outstanding provision for product warranties as at the reporting date is for the
balance unexpired pericd of the respective warranlies on the various products which range from 1 to 36 months.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

2.1 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a) Sale of products
- B36 Specific parts
- Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR)

- Spare parts and others

b} Sale of services
- Freight

- Others

¢} Other operating revenues
- Scrap sales

2.2 OTHER INCOME

a) Interest income from
Deposits with banks - at amortised cost
Others

{A)

{8)

(€)

{A+B+C)

L Year ended’ " Year ended
.- March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
o Rss C_ror'éé Rs. Crores
502.99
3.34
4.28
. A,024.04. 510.61
11.25
0.37
11.62
006 0.02
B 008 0.2
T 1,047.95 522.05
iuii Yedrended:i:  Year ended

- “March 31,2023 . March 31, 2022
27 Re. Crares it Rs. Crores

0.08

0.05
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2.3 COST OF MATERIALS AND SERVICES CONSUMED
Opening Stock
Add:- Purchases and expenseas- net

Less: Closing Stock

2.4 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOGDS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND
WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Changes in inventories
- Finished goods and stock-in-trade

-~ Work-in-progress

Net change

2.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
a) Salaries and wages
b) Contribution to provident and other funds
¢) Gratuity and compensaied absences expenses

d) Staff welfare expenses

'Yéa:r:'éﬁdéd-

S XYe de Year ended
© March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
" 'Re.Crores . Rs.Crores
13.24
496.33
: 500.57
(54.21), (56.00)
852,81 45357
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores
(23.03)
(23.03)
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Rs. Crores
5.46
0.19
0.17
0.26

6.08
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2.6 FINANCE COSTS
a) Interest expense

b} Interest on lease liability

2.7 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

A} Property, plant and equipment

(i} Plant and equipment
{ii) Furniture and filtings
(i) Office equipment

B) Intangible assets

Computer software - Acquired

C) Right-of-use asset

~ Yearended
. March 31,2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Rs, Crores
3.30

0.15

3.45

. Yearended .
March 31,2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Rs. Crores

3.04
0.18
0.31

A

3.51

0.40

(B) 7

0.40

0.39

©)

0.39

(A+B+C) T T

4.30
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2.8 OTHER EXPENSES
{a) Consumption of stores and tools
{b} Power and fuel
(c) Rent
{d) Repairs and maintenance
- Buildings
- Plant and machinery #
(&) insurance
(A Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income
{g) Service and product warranties (Net of reversals)*
(h) Packing and Forwarding Charges
(i) Consultancy and Professional charges
() Foreigh exchange loss — net
(k) Payments to Auditor
() Travel Expegses and conveyance
{m) Bank charges
(n} Manpower and Securily agent charges
(0) Selling and administration expenses - nel
(p) Annual maintenance contracts

{q) loss on sale of property plant and Equipment - Net

{r) "CSR Expenditure

*During the year, the company reasssessed its estimate for provision for warranty from 4%
of eligible sales to 3%. Due to this revision, the profit for the year is higher by Rs. 9.89
crores,

Nota:

1} Payments to Auditor comprise:
For Statutory Audit
For Taxation matters
Reimbursement of expenses

2) Rent expenses include:

Short term lease expenses, lease expenses for low value assets, and Variable lease
payments

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Rs. Crores
0.12
018

0.01

0.1
0.73
0.16
20.56
8.40
221
046
0.08
0.48
0.04
1.69
1.60
0.47
015

0.07

37.53

. March 31, 2022

0.056
0.02
0.01

0.01
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3.1 Income taxes relating to continuing operations

3.1.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year
Adjustments to deferred tax altributable to changes in tax rates and aws

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit:

Profit before tax
Income tax rate *
income tax expense *

Deferred tax expense/ {reversal) in relation to Property, Plant and Equipment

Effect of previously unrecognised and unused tax losses / unabsorbed depreciation and deductible
temporary differences

Others

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

* The Company has opted to exercise the option under Section 1158AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced hy the taxation laws

(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 in the financial year 2020-21.

income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Current tax

Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

. Year enddd: . Year ended
Marchy31,2023' | March 31, 2022
©'Rg; Crorés. >} Rs. Crores
2500 9.59
Lo(029) (0.12)
24 9.47
2 Yearended .| Yearended
Madrch 31,2023 ] March 3, 2022
."Rs.Crorés’ | Rs. Crores
S 9680 40.40
25.47% 25.47%
2435 1017
(0.28) (0.63)
062 (0.17)
0.00 0.10
— e

: Yedrénded::| Yearended
- Mafch 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
= Rei Crores Rs. Crores
0.01
. (0.04) 0.01
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Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements

3.2

3.241

3.22

Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of Provident Fund and Employee's pension
scheme, are defined contribution plans, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions fo the
Employee’s Provident Fund Organisation at a specified percentage of the coverad employees' salary.

The tofal expense recagnised in Statement of profit and loss of Rs. 0.22 Crores (2021-2022: 0.19 Crores ) represents
employers contribution to the fund said above.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on
an actuarial valuation.

Company's liability towards gratuity (unfunded) and compensated absences (unfunded) are actuarially determined at the end

of each year using the projected unit credit methed as applicable.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: invesiment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and

salary risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan fiability is calculated using a discount rate

Invesiment risk determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian
Rupees.
Interest rate risk A decrease in the bond interest rate wil increase the plan liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
Longeuvity risk estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
Salary risk salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements

3.2 Retirement henefit plans {continued)

3.2.3 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Gratuity

Discount rate

Expected rate of salary increase

Average Longevity at retirement age - past service
Average Longevity at retirement age - future service
Altrition rate

Compensated absences

Discount rate

Expected rate of salary increase

Aftrition rate

As at
March 31, 2022

“March 31,2023

6.86%

12.00%
4.57
8.16

11.00%

£.86%
12.00%
11.00%

The estimates of future saiary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

3.2.4 Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined henefit plans are as follows:

Gratuity

Current service cost

Net interest expense / (income)
Past service cost **

Companents of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss *

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising;
Actuarial loss arising from changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial gain / (loss) arising from experience adjustments **

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Total

Compensated absences and other defined benefit plans

Net interest expense

Current service cost

Actuarial {gain)/loss arising fraom changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss arising from experience adjustments

Components of defined henefit costs recognised in profif or loss *

Year ended

3 | March 31, 2022

Rs. Crores

0.08
Q.02
0.00

0.10

0.05
0.00

0.05

0.15

0.02

0.04
(0.05)

0.06

(0.09)
- {041)

0.07

* Included in "Gratuity and compensated absences expenses” under employes benefits expense in profit or loss (Refer Note

2.5),

** gmount in FY 2022-23 is below rounding off norms adopted by the company.
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3.2.5 The amountincluded in the halance sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is

as follows:

Gratuity

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (unfunded)
Compensated absences and other defined benefit plans

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (unfunded)

3.2.6 Movements in the present value of the defined benefit abligation were as follows:

{1) Gratuity
Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (loss}/gain arlsing from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gain arising from experience adjustments *

Benefits paid

Closing defined henefit obligation
*amountin FY 2022-23 is below rounding off norms adopted by the company

(2) Compsensated absences and other defined benefit plans
OCpening defined benefit obligation
Carrent service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gain arising fram changes in financial assumpticns
Actuarial {(gain)floss arising from experience adjustments
Benefits paid

Closing defined henefit ohligation

s Asat
“March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

As at

Rs. Crores

' Re; Crores.

0.51

0.51

0.43

0.43

. Yearended::,
- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Year ended

Rs. Crores

. Rs.Crores

0.36
0.08
0.02
0.05
(.00

0.51

s Year 'é'ride‘d:i_
23| March 31, 2022

March 31, 20

Year ended

Rs. Crores

0.37
0.04
0.02
{0.05)
0.08
(0.01)

0.43
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3.2.7 Movements in the fair value of the plan assets were as follows:

Gratuity
Opening fair value of plan assets

Contributions

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

Compensated absences
Opening fair value of plan assets
Coniributions

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

The Company does not fund the cost of the gratuity expected to be earned on a yearly basis.

. “Yearended i:| Yearended

‘March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

" Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
0.01
{0.01)
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3.2.8 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary Increase, The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period.

oo Aglak i As at
. March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
. Crores: Rs. Crores

Gratuity
If the discount rate is 50 basis points higherfower, the defined benedit
cbligation would:
decrease by 0.02
increase by 0.02
If the expected salary increases/decreases by 50 basis points, the
defined benefit obligation would:
increase by 0.02
decrease by 0.02
Compensated absences
if the discount rate is 50 basis points higher/flower, the defined benefit
obligation would:
decrease by 0.02
increase by 0.02
if the expected salary increases/decreases by 50 basis points, the
defined benefit abligation would:
increase by 0.02
decrease by 0.02

The sensitivity analysis presented above may nat be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as
it Is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolatien of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensilivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calcufated using the projected unit credit method at the end of each reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous year.

The average duration of the benefit obligation (gratuity) is 4 years (March 2022: 9.4 years).
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3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Face value per shave

Basic earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as

follows:

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share

Diluted earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equily shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as

follows:

Profit for the year atiributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share

" Yearended | Year ended
- March 31,2023 .| March 31, 2022
e Rs.
6.87
6.87
10.00

Year ended
March 31 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022
Rs, Crores

30.93

Year ended
March 31, 2022
Nos,

4,50,00,000

Year ended

Year ended
March 31, 2022
Rs, Crores

30.93

Year ended
March 31, 2622
Nos.

4,50,00,0004
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34

3.4.1

3.4.2

Financial Instruments
Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able 1o continue as going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance,

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual master planning and budgeting and five
year's corporate plan for working capital, capital outlay and long-term product and strategic involvements. The funding
requirements are met through equity, internal accruals and a combination of both fong-term and short-term horrowings.

The company has registered the charges on security offered for the purpose of availing loan within the stipulated period. The
company has ulilised the loans borrowed during the year for the purpose for which it is obtained as mentioned in the
borrowing agreements. The company is not declared as a wilful defaulter. The periodical returns submitied to the banks
matches with books of accounts of the Company.

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity and maturity profile of the overall debt
portfolio of the Company.

Gearing Ratio:

i March 3172023 March 31, 2022

Debt {Shert-term boirowings and lease liahifities) 17.77
Total equity 73.12
Debt equity ratio 0.24

The Company is required te comply with certain covenants under the Facility Agreements executed for its borrowings, which
is monitored for compliance.

Financial risk management

In course of its business, the Company is exposed o cerlain financial risks that could have significant influence on the
Company's business and operational / financial performance. These include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and fiquidity risk.

The Board of Directors reviews and appraves risk management framework and policies for managing these risks and
ronitors suitable mitigating actions taken by the managament to minimise potential adverse effects and achieve greater
predictability to earnings.

In line with the overalt risk management framewark and policies, the treasury function provides services to the business,
monitars and manages through an analysis of the exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.

{A} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, liquidity and other factors that could have an adverse effect on
realizable fair values or future cash flows to the Company. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates as fulure specific markat changes cannot be normally
predicted with reasonable accuracy.
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3.4 Financial Instruments {continued)
{1} Foreign currency risk management:
The Company undertakes transactions denominaled in foreign currencies and thus it is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The
Company aclively manages its currency rate exposures, arising from transaclions entered and denominated in fareign currencies,

its treasury team.

The carrying amounis of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monelary liabiiilies at the end of the
reporting period are as follows.

As on March 31, 2023 {all amounts are in eguivalent Rs, Crores):

Liabilities Assets Net overall
Gross Exposure Net liability Gross Exposure Netasset | @xposure on
Currency exposure | hedged using| exposure on | exposure {hedged using| exposure on the currency -
derivatives | the currency derivatives | the currency | netassets/
{net liabilities)
usD 11.07 - 11.07 - - “ {11.07}
EUR 10.31 - 10.31 - - - (10.31)
As on March 31, 2022 (all amounts are in squivalent Rs, Crores):
Liabilities Assets Net overall
Gross Exposure Net liability Gross Exposure Net asset axposure on
Currency exposure [ hedged using| exposure on exposure |hedged using!| exposure on |the currency -
derivatives | the currency derivatives | the currency | hetassets/
{niet liahilities)
usb 7.92 - 7.92 - - - {7.92)
EUR 3.24 - 3.24 - - - {3.24)

Foreign currency sensilivity analysis:

Movement in he funclional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies may impact the
Company's revenues from is operations, Any weakening of the funictional currency may impact the Company's cost of imports and|
cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company's capital expenditures.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rale exposure of a
currency and a parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents
Management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity of profit or fass to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financials
instruments. The following lable details the Company's sensilivity movement in the increase / decrease in foreign currencies
exposures {net):

Rs. Crores
Impact in Statement of Profit and loss
s March 31,202 i March 31, 2022
; 0.16

0.07

Usp
EUR
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3.4 Financial Instruments (continuad)
{2) Interest rate risk management;:

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk pertaining to funds borrowed at floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the
Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and flcating rate horrowings. Further, in appropriate cases, the
Company may also effect changes in the barrowing arrangements to convert floating interest rates fo fixed interest rates and
vice versa,

The exposure of company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

e March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
sl ReJCrores i Rs.Crores

Particulars

Variable rate Borrowings

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure o interest rates at the end of the reporting periad.
For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming that the amaount of the liability as at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management perscnnel and represents Management's assessment of the reascnably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/ lower, the Company's profit for the year ended March 31, 2023 would
decrease/ increase by Nil (2021-22: decrease/ increase by Rs. 0.11). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

{B} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its coniractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Company. The Company does not have significant credit risk exposure since the Holding Company is ils main customer.

The Company, thus has Nil expected credit loss allowance for trade receivable after considering historical credit foss
expertence and adjusted for forward-locking information.

Age analysis of Trade receivables

= Ag at March 31,2023 00000 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars 'Rs.Crores Rs.Crores
Gross Allowance Net
Nat Due 1656.31 - 165,31
Due less than 6 months 6.15 - 8.15
Due greater than € months C.47 - 0.47
Total 171.93 - 171.93

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the total of the
carrying amount of batances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, and other financial assets excluding
equity investments.
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3.4 Financial Instruments {continued)

(C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the rigk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company has obtained fund based
working capital lines from bank.

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

‘March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
. Rs.Crotes . Rs. Crores

Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) i

- Secured 31.81
- Unsecured n
Total 31.81

The Company also canstantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial
flexibility.

The table below summarises the maturity profile remaining contractual maturity period at the balance sheet dale for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the undiscounted cash flows.

Rs, Crores

Particuiars

March 31, 2023

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

= 16468 i

March 31, 2022

Trade payables 159.71 - 159.719
Other financial liabilities 3.62 - 3.62
Borrowings 16.19 - 16.19
| ease Liability 0.47 1.40 1.86
179.99 1.40 181,38

Categories of Financial assets and liabilities:

s As at

rch 31, 2_0_2_ March 31, 2022

R's:Cro_'_rés"i. Rs.Crores
Financial assats o
Measured at amotrtised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 1.61
Trade receivables 171.93
Others 0.01

173.55

Financial liabilities
Measurad at amortised cost:
Borrowings 16.19
Trade payables 159.71
Ofher financial liabitities 3.62
Lease Liability 1.58

181.10
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3.5

351

Revenue from confracts with customers

Disaggregated revenue information
Particulars

Type of goods and service

a) Sale of products
- BS8 Specific Parts
- Selective Catalylic Reduction (SCR)
- Spare parts and Others

b} Sale of services
- Freight
- Others

¢} Other aperating revenues

- Scrap sales
Tofal revenue from contracts with customers
india

Qutside India
Total revenue from contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars

- Sale of products and other eperating income
- Sale of Services - Freight
- Sale of Services - Other recoveries

Total revenue fram contracts with customers
Contract halances

Particulars

Trade receivables (Refer notes 1.6)

wo Year ended::
: March 31 2023

* Yearended: Year ended
}__March 31 2023 March 31, 2022
i ; Rs, Crores

502,99
3.34
4.28

510.61

11.25
0.37

11.62

0.02

0.02

522,258

522.03
0.22

" 1,047.95 537,25

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Trade recelvables are non - interest bearing and are generally an terms of 45 days.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars

Candracted price
Adjustments
Rebates and discaunis

Revenue from contracts with customers

Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied Performance obligation
There are no unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance abligation as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

At a pomt i Over & perlod af © Atapointin Over a period of
: : ; time time
510.63 B
11.25 -
QAT T 522.25 -
cinaiiAsTak As at
i '_March 3, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs Crores Rs. Crores
195 13- 171.93

. Yéar ended Year ended

. March31,2023  March 31, 2022

Rs. Crores

Rs Crores G
; 522.25

522,26
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3.6 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties where control exists

Holding company

Ashok Leyland Limited

(Holding Company)

Hinduja Automotive Limited, United Kingdom

(Holding company of Ashok Leyland Limited)

Machen Holdings SA

{Holding Company of Hinduja Automotive Limited, United Kingdom)
Machen Development Corporation, Panama

{Holding Company of Machen Holdings, SA)

Amas Holdings SA

(Holding Company of Machen Development Corporation, Panama)

Feliow subsidiaties

Albonair GmbH, Germany .

- Albonair (Taicang) Automotive Technology Co. Limited., China
Hinduja Tech Limited

Key Management Personnel
Dr. N Saravanan, Chief Executive Officer.........coonnin s, Effective from July 10, 2020
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3.6 Related party disclosure {continued)

b) Related Party Transactions - summary
Rs. Crores

.. Particulars - | Fellow Subsidiaries. | Holding Company Total

Transactions during the year ended March 31

Purchase of raw materials, components and
tfraded goods (net of GST)*

Sales and services (net of GST)
Other expendilure incurred / (recovered) (hat)
Purchase of assels

G A woN

Sale of assets

* amount is below rounding off norms adepted by the company

¢} Related Party Balances - summary
Rs. Crores

- pariculars.

Balances as on March 31 2022 s 023 2022 2022
1 [Trade receivables 15554 | 155.58
2 |Trade and other payables - 0.54
3 {Supplier Advance . -




Albonair {India) Private Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements

3.6 Related party disclosure (continued)

d) Significant Related Party Transactions

Rs. Crores

Transactions during the year ended March 31

2022

1

Purchase of raw materials, components and tfraded goods { net of GST)

Albonair GmbH, Germany
Albonair (Taicang) Automotive Technology Co. Ltd., China
Ashok Leyland Limited *

Sales and services (net of GST}
Sale of Finished gaoods {Net of GST)
Ashek Leyland Limited
Albonair GmbH, Germany
Albonair {Taicang) Automotive Technology Ce. Lid., China

Sale of Spare Parts
Ashok Leyland Limited

Revenue from Services
Albonair GmbH
Ashok Leyland Limited

Sale of assets
Albonair GmbH

Volume Discount
Ashok Leyland Limited

Other expenditure incurred / (recovered) (nef}
Receipt of Services
Ashck Leyland Limited
Albonair GmbH, Germany
Rent Expenses

Ashok Leyland Limited

Purchase of assets
Albonair GmbH
Hinduja Tech Limited- Other intangile Asset

* amount is below rounding off norms adopted by the company

0.75
0.88

492,76
0.22

2.80

2,38
0.34

0.47
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Contingent liabilities and Commitimenis

o coAsatiy As at
Particulars ..:March 31,2023 . March 31, 2022
5 Rs.Crores

i Rs,Crores

1.65

Capital commitments (net of advances) not provided for.
There are no contingent liabilities as at the end of current and previous financial year

The company operates only in one segment viz. development and production of exhaust after-treatment systems for on-road and off
road vehicles and hence, segment reporting is not applicable,

The information required to be disclosed under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been
determined oh the basis of information available with the Company. The amount of principal and interest outstanding is given befow:

Rs. Crores

‘March 31,2023 7| March 31, 2022

Particulars

i) Principal amount paid after appointed date during the year

i} Amount of interest due and payable for the delayed payment of principal amount
iy Principal amount remaining unpaid as at year end {over due)

v) Principal amount remaining unpaid as at year end {not due)

V) Interest due and payable on principal amount unpaid as at the year end

vi) Total amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at year end

vii} Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

Corporate Social Responsibifity

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend 2% of its average
net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibilities (CSR) activities. The company’s net
profits have crossed the limit prescribed under section 135 only in the financial year 2020-21, hence, CSR bacame applicable fo the
Company only from the FY 2021-22,

Particulars s Mareh 31,2023 00 March 31, 2022
Amount required to be spent during the year T T 36 0.07
Amount of expenditure incurred, 0.36 0.07
Shaortfall if any T -
Total of previous years shorifall -
Reason for shortfall NA

Nature of CSR activities

Refer note 2 below

Details of related party transactions where CSR is entrusted to a related party NA
Opening Provision (if any)

Additiocn

Utilisation NA

Closing Provision

Note 1:
The Company had spent the CSR fund towards Mobile Medical unit, Tamilnadu Region.
Note 2:

The Company had spent the CSR fund towards instailation of RO waler purifiers in schools.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19
3.20

Ultimate Beneficiary

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons / entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary has, whether directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) ar provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the Company from any persons / enlities, including foreign entities, that the company has)
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There are no benami properties held by the Company.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act.
The Company does not have undisclosed income.

The company does not deal with virtual currency.

The company does not have any transactions with struck off companies during the year.

“The Code on Social Security 2020 ('the Code’) relaling to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment,
has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective
date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet
issued,

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in|
which, the Cade becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 03rd May 2023

The figures for the previous year have been reclassified/ regrouped wherever necessary for belter understanding and
comparabilily.

For and on behalf of the Board

N. Saravanan Vasan Ranganathan
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08772440

N. Pandi
Company Secretary
Date: May 03, 2023

For MSKA & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 105047W
Chartered Accountants

T.V.Ganesh

Parther

Membership Number - 203370
Date: May 03, 2023

Chennai




